# WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS March 23, 2017, 9:00 a.m. Commission Board Room 1331 South Blvd., Chipley, FL 32428

DISTRICT 1	DISTRICT 2	DISTRICT 3	DISTRICT 4	DISTRICT 5
Alan Bush	Charles Kent	Tray Hawkins	Todd Abbott	Steve Joyner
	Chairman		Vice-Chairman	

I. PROCLAMATION – CPL. Smith

В.

- A. Call to Order Chairman Kent
- The Washington County Board of County Commissioners met on the above referenced date with the following members present: Chairman Kent, Commissioners Bush, Hawkins, Abbott, and Joyner.

Invocation/Pledge - Hank Hamilton/Chairman Kent

Also attending the meeting are as follows:

Jeff Goodman, County Attorney

Lora C. Bell, Clerk of Court

Hank Hamilton, County Administrator

Risha Brantley, Deputy Clerk

II. ADOPT THE AGENDA – Commissioner Abbott requested item E. be pulled from the consent agenda and moved to the regular agenda. Commissioner Hawkins added the repayment of funds to the State in regards to the courthouse, as well as how the monitoring wells will be handled.
Commissioner Bush added the acceptance of the work that has been done at Hightower Springs and Live Oak. Chairman Kent added GAC's final

payment in regards to the courthouse.

Commissioner Abbott offered a motion, seconded by Commissioner Bush and carried to approve the agenda.

### III. ADOPT PREVIOUS MINUTES -

- February 15, 2017, Workshop
- February 23, 2017 Board Meeting
- March 8, 2017 Special Meeting

Commissioner Bush offered a motion, seconded by Commissioner Hawkins and carried to approve the above referenced minutes.

- IV. NON-AGENDA AUDIENCE Effective October 1, 2013, Florida Statute 286.0114 mandates that "members of the public shall be given a reasonable opportunity to be heard on a proposition before a Board or Commission." Each individual shall have three (3) minutes to speak on the proposition before the Board.
  - Sharon Bahr, 3447 Voyager Ct., Sunny Hills addressed the Board in reference to the Sunny Hills Library closure. At the prior meeting she requested information about the possibility of rewriting the MSBU ordinance to assist funding the library. After some research she found that almost every library is funded by county, state, and some federal assistance. Why does Sunny Hills have to be closed without more input

and donations from county, state, and federal? There is a state-aid program called the LSTA, which are funds that could be applied for.

The library is only open once a week where it was previously open three times per week. There aren't any program offered at the location. The distance for seniors is a factor; most seniors cannot go that far, referencing the distance from Wausau's library to Sunny Hills Library is 9.1 miles. Why can't the Wausau location be closed? Sunny Hills is a larger facility and has better lighting, except for outside but that can be corrected.

She suggested to the Board that enough hasn't been done to keep it open or advertisement for it.

- Kathy Gesslein, 1983 Baldwin St., Sunny Hills addressed the Board in reference to the Sunny Hills Library and MSBU Advisory Board. The library is closed from 12:00 p.m. – 1:00 p.m., which is the time period that bingo is done not allowing for bingo participants to visit the library. She suggested the hours be adjusted to allow this participation.

Also the MSBU Board should consist of those that are a part of the taxing unit, which should be included in the ordinance.

- Pat Dickson, President of the Friends of The Washington County Library

System, 381 Hwy. 90, Chipley addressed the Board in reference to the library suggesting that the Board should put in effort to find out why the participation is low in the Sunny Hills area.

The percentage of participation in the surrounding areas has increased over the last three years. The issue needs to be looked at realistically. She asked the Board to consider the lighting issue at the Sunny Hills library, adding additional staff there, and adding security.

 Roberta Lampe, 3298 Bonnett Pond Road, Chipley addressed the Board in reference to the library. She is a member of the Friends of the Library.
 She suggested that the Sunny Hills Library location is nice but the distance is far.

The lighting at the Sunny Hills Library is also a concern.

Cynthia Johnson, 1309 South Blvd., Chipley, FL addressed the Board in reference to the library. She and her husband are supporters of the library and are frequent users of the Washington County Library in Chipley. She is also a long time member of the Friends of the Library and their sole purpose is to support the Washington County Library, which they do by providing funds for material and equipment that would otherwise not be available by assisting the library with various programs

and implementing those programs or assisting them to do so. Also, they make public aware of the important role they play in the community.

Keeping the facility open doesn't seem like it is a good use of the tax payer's money.

- Sharon Kirk, Sunny Hills addressed the Board in support of the library remaining open. She has been a resident of Sunny Hills for (17) years.

MSBU has been a problem for years.

She advised after research she found that Deltona dedicated the roads, drainage, and right-of-ways to the county. On the front page of every unit that is recorded at the Clerk's Office the information is reflected on their.

Per a spokesperson from Deltona, Washington County did accept these obligations for roads and right-of-ways.

She advised the Board she has a letter in her possession from Sharon Homerhyme, Vice-President of Deltona stating the same thing.

She requested the Board look at the area, focusing on the Boulevard, Elkcam, and Shenandoah which display a lack of attention. There is a park across from the old fire department that is a mess, which have non-functioning bathrooms for over a year. Trash is also a large problem in the area.

She expressed concern about the taxes being collected and the residents not receiving anything in return.

The first unit was dedicated in 1941. There's opportunity for growth in the area, but Sunny Hills needs to be built back up.

- Sal Zurica, Sunny Hills addressed the Board in reference to the potential MSBU Board. Comments were made at the prior workshop in reference to non-residents being on the MSBU. The Board should take initiative to get out and know the residents in Sunny Hills. Outsiders being on the Board would be an error. The updated ordinance should include text that only residents/property owners are eligible to be members of the board.
- Maurice Hargrove, 1672 Sunny Hills addressed the Board in reference to the library remaining open. The library is useful for the kids.

Also, the park needs to be addressed. The expense for the library being open one day per week is in the budget, and should remain open. It is

important for children's education.

He offered to work security at the library.

He also advised and provided the Board with a door to door signed paper supporting the library remain open.

Commissioner Hawkins commended Maurice Hargrove, advising that is what the Board is looking for.

Also the internet is back up. The high speed that is available in the south end of the county. The best in the south, right now at the public library.

## V. CONSENT AGENDA

- A. Request approval for the Clerk of Court to pay vouchers for January 2017 totaling \$1,307,417.89 (Month corrected further in the meeting as February)
- B. Parking Variance Request Caryville Dollar General The applicant is requesting a variance for a reduction in the total number of parking spaces required (36 parking spaces) in order to provide 31 parking spaces for the proposed retail development. Additionally, the applicant requests to reduce the width of the standard parking stalls from 10' to 9'.
- C. FEMA Coordinator Task Order 9 April 2017 May 2017
- D. Kent Road Survey Southeastern Survey to perform the survey on Kent

- Road for a cost of \$22,072.40
- E. South Blvd. Speed Limit This item was pulled by Commissioner Abbott.
- F. CEI Firm Approval David H. Melvin Inc. Consulting Engineers to provide

  Construction Engineering Inspection services for the South

  Boulevard/Hoyt S. Sidewalk Lap Project contingent upon price
  negotiations.
- G. Truck #1852 Repair Mann Automotive to perform needed repair to truck #1852
- H. Tax Deed Board will pursue application for tax deeds on parcels valued above \$3,000.00
- I. 50/50 Forestry Grant Sunny Hills Fire Department to apply for a 50% match grant to purchase (10) Motorola pagers.
- J. Florida Detroit Diesel Renewal of annual contract for generator maintenance. Agreement will expire March 2018.
- K. Small Quantity Generators Renewal of contract for West Florida Regional Planning Council to continue preparing Washington County's Small Quantity Hazardous Waste Assessment program.
- L. E-911 Rural County Grant
- M. Temporary Employment Temporary employment extension of (6) months for Cheryl Davidson
- N. County Property Bid Acceptance of bid received on parcel #00-5411-

0179 by Terry Haielson and on parcel #01-0136-0009 by Randall Weekley.

- O. Songbird Lane Acceptance of Quitclaim Deed for Parcel #23-1725-0016
- P. SCRAP Staff to submit Old Bonifay Road
- Q. Sheriff Bond Waiver
- R. Meeting Date Change BOCC Board Meeting rescheduled to April 19th

Commissioner Bush offered a motion, seconded by Commissioner Hawkins and carried to approve the consent agenda omitting item E., which was pulled from the consent agenda earlier in the meeting.

#### VI. AGENDA ITEMS -

- Sunny Hills Library Renae Rountree, Library Director addressed the Board. In regards to the 800 flyers that previously went out they were sent out May 2015, which were targeted to households that had children under the age of 18 using census figures through the Everyday Direct Mail. This contact was not successful in bringing any children to the library during the summer for the summer reading program.

A program at the Country Oaks facility provided an average of 10 – 15 children weekly.

The following year, due to history they elected to not providing the reading

program at Sunny Hills but at Country Oaks.

LSTA money is currently eliminated in the budget submitted by the President's to congress.

Out of the \$230,000,000.00 in federal money that is allocated for libraries and museums, \$8,000,000.00 comes to the State of Florida, which is disbursed at the state and regional level. It is incredibly rare for a small county or even a large county without participating with several large counties to receive federal funds in that way.

The federal money pays for 64 research databases.

Ms. Rountree advised the Board that it is not her intent to be the negative person regarding this situation. It would not have been presented to the Board if she did not have good reason. The numbers have been provided to the Board. There is also the fact that they are not able to provide the level of service or security that they would like to in that location.

She does not feel comfortable asking a staff member to open the building, asking them to walk the building checking the secureness of it. It is a concern that the staff there are safe, which is a concern that has been enhanced since the Chipley library location was robbed in broad daylight December 2015.

Eventually the location in Sunny Hills will have higher speed internet but currently there are only 3 mg running at that location.

There has been a decrease in circulation and patron use at the facility. However, there have been increases at all the other locations.

Commissioner Bush addressed Ms. Rountree in reference to figures provided at the workshop on 3/22. The cost per user mentioned was \$114.00.

Ms. Rountree advised the amount is \$106.69 per unique patron. There are 52 active patrons on the books in Sunny Hills. That does not include the \$5,000.00 expense that is being paid out of the Parks and Recreation budget for the utilities.

Commissioner Bush referenced Wausau.

Ms. Rountree advised Commissioner Bush that it is \$160.00 with a portion of that being due to the staff located there being with the county over 20 years and is the second in command.

Commissioners Bush, Hawkins, and Kent advised Ms. Rountree that they thought the amount was \$116.00.

Ms. Rountree confirmed the amount as \$160.00.

Ms. Rountree advised the Board that she has done things to try and increase the participation at the Sunny Hills location.

Commissioner Bush asked if the average is 15 patrons per day.

Ms. Rountree addressed Commissioner Bush last year they averaged 59 per month.

Commissioner Bush suggested to the Board once the MSBU Advisory Committee is in place the county would fund the library system at the same level that it does the others but if it took anymore they could offset that with MSBU funds.

Commissioner Abbott expressed his support as well as the Board's support for the library advising there are measures the Board can put in

place in regards to safety.

Ms. Rountree recommended the Board close the Sunny Hills Library but if the Board chooses not to close it there's a list of items that she would need in order to feel secure and safe for staff and patrons.

Commissioner Hawkins asked what needs to be changed for safety. The concern needs to be addressed regardless of if the library portion is open because the building is rented out as well.

Commissioner Abbott asked what kind of cost you put on making a difference in a child's life.

Ms. Rountree addressed the Board. A factor of the higher cost is the staff's higher expense due to longevity. Her entire salary was not included. Items that she does that were not related to Wausau were not pulled out.

Ideally a security system would be needed for the entire building, fund a library branch manager, and a library page, which would cost an estimated \$25,000.00 – \$30,000.00.

Commissioner Hawkins asked Ms. Rountree about the option of having a staff and a volunteer one day per week.

Ms. Rountree addressed Commissioner Hawkins. She would ask how the county would like her to approach volunteers because currently they don't allow volunteers.

Commissioner Hawkins suggested background checks could be ran on volunteers.

Deputy Clerk Brantley asked Rena Rountree does she mean the State when she referenced they don't allow volunteers.

Ms. Rountree advised they means the county.

Commissioner Hawkins suggested this could be changed.

Ms. Rountree advised the Board there are also concerns about patron privacy. The location needs a dedicated Branch Manager, which is something that they have never had.

Commissioner Kent asked with this staff, would the location be open more than once a week.

Ms. Rountree advised yes.

The Vernon location has a Branch Manager who also serves as tech support.

Commissioner Hawkins confirmed that the library being open is funded through the remainder of the budget.

Ms. Rountree advised that is correct.

Commissioner Bush addressed how volunteers are covered in other areas.

County Attorney Goodman addressed Commissioner Bush. There is a volunteer application background process that would need to be cleared with the insurance company. They are treated much like employees with background checks.

Commissioner Joyner offered a motion, seconded by Commissioner Hawkins and carried unanimously for the Sunny Hills Library to remain open throughout this budget year. Commissioner Joyner addressed the Board. He would like to see Ms. Rountree and County Administrator Hamilton working toward a legal volunteer program and remaining open for input of the upcoming MSBU Advisory Committee and keep the library open for people as long as they can.

He expressed a dislike of seeing the library closed.

Chairman Kent requested County Administrator Hamilton address the lighting at the Sunny Hills Library location as well as work with Ms. Rountree and have one of the Road Department staff/staff to meet the library staff at the location to do a building check with them in the mornings.

Commissioner Abbott asked if the door that was found unlocked was a library internal door.

Ms. Rountree advised Commissioner Abbott that it was never a library internal door.

In order for library staff and patrons to use the restroom facility the community center has to be open. Those doors have been open multiple times and the county administrative office has been notified anytime that has occurred.

Commissioner Hawkins advised to get prices on security and look toward having that installed.

Chairman Kent advised County Administrator Hamilton that he would like the park attended to in Sunny Hills as well as implementing something to try to stop the vandalism.

Commissioner Hawkins suggested they will have to police some things themselves.

County Administrator Hamilton asked the name of the park.

He was advised the park is Wilder Park.

Commissioner Bush addressed Jackie Snowden in reference to the doors that have been left open.

Jackie Snowden, County Administrative Secretary suggested to Commissioner Bush the community center door locks need to be changed.

Commissioner Bush suggested to Jackie Snowden that there would be three exit doors but only one that the key could unlock. The doors need to automatically lock upon closing.

Jackie Snowden addressed the Board. One key limits human error and rekeying the entire building would be idea.

- South Blvd. Speed Limit – Commissioner Abbott advised the Board that his understanding of the Boards direction at the workshop was to set the speed limit to 35 mph in front of the school and 45 mph after the school.

Chairman Kent and Tom Terrell, Public Works Director advised that is correct.

Commissioner Abbott offered a motion, seconded by Commissioner Bush and carried unanimously to change the speed limit through the school zone (Kate Smith) to 35 mph and thereafter 45 mph.

County Engineer Knauer addressed the Board. Per traffic information the average daily traffic on that road is 4,400. It is a major collector road.

He expressed support of the Board's decision to leave the speed at 45 mph for the remainder of the road, per the study.

The traffic data from the Department of Transportation supports the Board's decision.

- State Payment (Courthouse) – Commissioner Hawkins advised the Board that he would like the \$750,000.00 released to the State as previously promised by the Board.

Commissioner Hawkins offered a motion, seconded by Commissioner Abbott for discussion to return the \$750,000.00 for the courthouse to the State.

Commissioner Bush suggested the Board include a letter with the payment as well as a picture.

Commissioner Abbott suggested a framed day and night picture.

Commissioner Hawkins advised the Board that he would like the payment to be delivered before the 28th.

County Administrator Hamilton advised that he has the pictures as well as a draft resolution for the Board's consideration.

County Attorney Goodman read the proposed resolution. This resolution will be included following the minutes.

Commissioner Bush and Clerk Bell suggested the year built was 1927.

County Attorney Goodman advised that he will confirm the date included is correct in the resolution.

Commissioner Hawkins amended his previous motion.

Commissioner Hawkins offered a motion, seconded by Commissioner Bush and unanimously carried to return \$750,000.00, along with the resolution and pictures previously noted by March 28 to the state.

- Monitoring Wells – Commissioner Abbott confirmed with the Board that JRA was due to be present before the Board today to present information.

County Administrator Hamilton addressed Commissioner Abbott. David

Vincent, JRA did not understand that his attendance was required.

County Engineer Knauer provided the Board a history in regard to the monitoring wells.

2010 – 2012 a 1-page application was sent to DEP to request assistance for Brownfields Grant on the sheriff's department. In that timeframe that was submitted to DEP.

In 1993, Washington County had a 1,990 gallon gasoline underground storage tank removed from the old sheriff's site, which is where this all started.

As part of the removal of that storage tank there is a form that is filed with DEP. The closure assessment form was submitted to DEP, documenting that the tank was intact when it was removed and that organic vapor analyzing activities were performed and that they were non-detectable on an oba meter.

The closure assessment form indicated that this was a very clean site.

June 2013, PPM Consultants who were hired by DEP, performed soil and ground water phase II environment site assessment testing activities using assessment funds from the West Florida Regional Planning Council's epa Brownfield's assessment grant. It was recommended by

DEP after the tank was removed to be checked.

The phase II epa indicated that there was localized soil and ground water impacts at the former ust area per the 2013 report.

June 9, 2014 notification was submitted to Washington County by the Escambia County Health Department advising due to the discovery of petroleum contamination, Washington County is required to initiate a formal site assessment. This means putting in monitoring wells and to start going through a monitoring program with the agencies.

November 2014, Cardo, hired by DEP performed a site assessment installing 9 soil borings and 3 permanent monitoring wells to further delineate soil and ground water impacts. Results of the assessment indicated that both soil and groundwater impacts were localized at the former tank pit location.

July 24, 2015 DEP sent a letter to the Washington County Board of County Commissioners indicating that they agreed with the conclusion of the 2014 site assessment and that another round of groundwater sampling should be conducted to seek conditional closure under the risk management option 2. They requested that the results be reported back to DEP by October 2015.

The wells that were put in and paid for by DEP were under semi-annual sampling.

County Engineer Knauer addressed the Board. When the Board initiated the building of the courthouse there was somewhere around 12' - 16' of cut in the area where the wells were. The finished ground elevation where the wells were sitting needed to be cut around 12' – 15' in order for the building of the courthouse.

He suggested the confusion came in at the closure point. In order to do a closure on a well it is a 1-page application to Water Management District, not to DEP.

GAC hired EGS, which is an environment and geo technical specialist from Tallahassee to do the actual closure of the wells. EGS filled out the one page form to Water Management District notifying them of the closure of the three monitoring wells. Water Management District approved it and they had a licensed driller close the three wells.

Commissioner Abbott suggested that DEP received the e-mail.

County Engineer Knauer addressed Commissioner Abbott. The e-mail asks if they need any other approvals from DEP. They are asking before we close these three wells do they need any other approvals from DEP.

County Engineer Knauer advised that his answer is no because it all

comes from Water Management District.

The issue was you are under semi-annual sampling. The courthouse project would have likely had to have been held off for 3 – 5 months before the sampling would have been complete.

County Engineer Knauer advised the Board the recommendation from DEP is to put 2 of the 3 wells back in.

Commissioner Abbott addressed the Board, his understanding per the emails is that they had everyone's approval, including DEP.

County Engineer Knauer addressed Commissioner Abbott. What he said in his e-mail was they pulled the proper permits to close the wells, which is Water Management District, not DEP.

Commissioner Abbott asked County Engineer Knauer where his involvement came in.

County Engineer Knauer addressed Commissioner Abbott. DEP called him asking when the new wells would be installed.

They had been sending letters to Mr. Corbin, County Administrator (previous) and had not received a response. Alex Webster was reaching out but hadn't received a response. At some point during this time Mr. Corbin retired and the e-mails were continuing to come to his e-mail address, which were not getting picked up.

County Attorney Goodman advised the Board that he confirmed with Mr. Webster that the person that was trying to reach out to Mr. Corbin has since left and didn't make notification that there had been no contact via phone to the administrative office.

County Engineer Knauer advised the Board that he was directed by Mr. Corbin to obtain proposals for the cost of the wells.

Commissioner Abbott expressed concern that Mr. Corbin ordered the proposals without the Board requesting them.

Commissioner Joyner asked the source and depth of the contamination.

County Engineer Knauer advised that they are directing that the tank is the source and they are requesting the tip of the screen go in 50' deep. Commissioner Joyner commented they are testing the ground water.

Commissioner Bush addressed County Engineer Knauer. Brownfield Grant was set up for cleaning up sites.

County Engineer Knauer advised it was for assessments. They currently do not have funding for clean ups.

Commissioner Bush asked if well samples continue until something is found. If the funding isn't available for remediation what is the point in continuing to sample.

County Engineer Knauer addressed Commissioner Bush. They want to establish whether remediation is needed.

Commissioner Hawkins asked what happens if they find out the new courthouse has been built on contaminated soil.

County Engineer Knauer addressed Commissioner Hawkins. There are some remediation methods that they could use to clean it up.

The good news is the reports display that it is a localized issue. This means the ground water table in the area where the tank is where the problem is. The reason for the monitoring wells is to study the contamination.

DEP is concerned about the ground water.

The Board continued discussion along with County Engineer Knauer.

Commissioner Bush asked if the placement of the wells had been dictated.

County Engineer Knauer advised that it is near the old wells; it's located in the parking lot.

Commissioner Bush confirmed that they will both be in the parking lot on the southwest side.

County Engineer Knauer agreed.

Commissioner Hawkins asked the cost of the annual testing.

County Engineer Knauer advised that quarterly testing is \$5,000.00 annually and semi-annual is \$2,500.00 annually. The frequency of the testing is currently unknown.

Commissioner Joyner asked County Engineer Knauer if the ending point had been identified.

County Engineer Knauer advised that it is currently unknown.

The Board and County Engineer Knauer continued discussion.

County Engineer Knauer addressed the Board. The letter dated March 1, 2017 directed that the Board has to have the wells installed.

Commissioner Joyner offered a motion, seconded by Commissioner Abbott and carried to install monitoring wells at the Courthouse as DEP has requested.

County Engineer Knauer advised the Board the contractor has completed the work at Hightower Springs, and Live Oak Landing. They have given the contractor a punch list, which has been completed by the contactor. County Engineer Knauer requested approval for the chairman to sign a substantial and final completion notice for close out.

Commissioner Bush offered a motion, seconded by Commissioner

Joyner and carried to approve the final completion on Live Oak

Landing and Hightower Springs.

County Engineer Knauer addressed the Board in reference to daily traffic data information that he provided to the Board. The information provided on Orange Hill Road was gathered from sampling information about 400' south of South Boulevard. The information shows the average daily traffic is 3,000.

Commissioner Abbott addressed County Engineer Knauer. The sampling location that he wanted was south of Brickyard Road on Orange Hill.

County Engineer Knauer addressed Commissioner Abbott in reference to information on the printout they were provided. There was one done 150' east of SR 77, which is 4,800, and another one on South Boulevard, which is 200' west of SR 77, which is 4,400.

Commissioner Abbott advised the Commissioners the traffic count of

4,800 is the cut through that was previously discussed by the Board on Brown Street. It justifies what the Board is discussing.

County Engineer Knauer advised the Board that Kirkland Road plans are an estimated 90% complete.

Commissioner Abbott offered a motion, seconded by Commissioner

Joyner and carried to authorize approval for County Engineer

Knauer to put Kirkland Road out for bid.

Commissioner Joyner asked County Engineer Knauer if maintenance on the contract A. and B. belong to the contractor.

County Engineer Knauer advised that is his, until they give him final approval on those roads, he owns them.

Scott Whidden is the inspector on the projects.

GAC Retainage – Commissioner Abbott offered a motion, seconded by
 Commissioner Hawkins and unanimously carried to authorize the
 release of the GAC retainage check.

VII. PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR - None

VIII. COUNTY ENGINEER - County Engineer Knauer spoke earlier in the meeting.

IX. COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR - None

X. CLERK – Clerk Bell advised the Board the month listed for the vouchers on the consent agenda should be February instead of January.

Commissioner Abbott addressed the Board in reference to the Board paying for garbage and taxes on the City Water bills. He suggested the Chairman appoint a liaison to work with the City of Chipley.

Chairman Kent suggested Commissioner Abbott meet with Dan Miner in regards to the above referenced issue, as well as the housing of inmates.

Chairman Kent advised that he would like to have some water test on the meters to ensure that they are working properly.

Commissioner Abbott requested County Administrator Hamilton set up the meeting.

Commissioner Bush asked County Attorney Goodman if there was a known agreement with the City of Chipley in regards to housing inmates.

County Attorney Goodman suggested there would be an inter-local

agreement.

Commissioner Bush advised the Board the clerk's office provided information that the City of Chipley doesn't pay for inmate housing.

Clerk Bell advised the Board they all work together in the auditing process of the invoices.

## XI. COUNTY ATTORNEY -

- Waste Management Contract - County Attorney Goodman provided the Board the Waste Management contract which requires approval.

Commissioner Abbott offered a motion, seconded by Commissioner Hawkins and carried to approve the Waste Management Contract.

Deputy Clerk Brantley Date Board Approved